COPY

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

WILLIAM LOGAN JR

APPELLANT

v.

NO. 2006-KA-01790-COA

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

FILED

JUL 10 2007

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
SUPREME COURT
COURT OF APPEALS

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

WILLIAM LOGAN JR. #K3694
C.M.C.F 3B-1
P.O. Box 88550
Pearl, MS 39288

Attorney for William Logan Jr.
pro se

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

WILLIAM LOGAN JR

APPELLANT

V.

NO. 2006-KP-01790-COA

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PERSONS

Statement of Issues

ISSUE No. I: Whether the trial court erred in allowing the indictment to be amended twice to correct the date of crimes?

ISSUE No. II: Whether the trial court erred in allowing evidence seized during an invalid inventory search?

ISSUE No. III: Whether the defendant's Sixth Amendment and Art. III, Sec. 26 of MS Constitution right to counsel was violated?

ISSUE No. IV: Whether the indictment was deficient and couldn't properly support a conviction or bar future prosecutions?

ISSUE No. V: Whether the trial court erred in not sustaining the objection to admission of certain evidence?

ISSUE No. VI: Whether the State erred by not eliciting eyewitness testimony concerning identification of defendant?

ISSUE No. VII: Whether the court-appointed attorney Oby Rogers conduct was or constituted ineffective assistance of counsel?

ISSUE No. VIII: Appellant alleges that he was denied the effective assistance of counsel by trial counsel Hon. Dan McIntosh?

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This appeal proceeds from the Circuit Court of the Thirteenth Judicial District of Covington County, Mississippi, and a judgment of conviction for the crime(s) of Burglary of a Dwelling(s) in cause no. 2004-44K, against William Logan Jr. and resulting in two concurrent sentences of twenty-five (25) years, following a trial held July 24, 2006, Honorable Robert G. Evans, Circuit Judge, presiding. William Logan Jr. is presently incarcerated with the Mississippi Department of Corrections, located in Pearl, MS.

FACTS

On January 5, 2004, a 911 call came in to the Covington County Sheriff's Dept at 11:27 A.M. that a black male was seen coming from the residence of Ruby Benson, carrying a cash box that belonged to them, suspect then entered his vehicle described as a brown Honda Accord bearing Warren County, Mississippi license plates. The suspect was followed by Mr. Earl Benson. The Cov. Co. deputies upon responding to the call, saw a vehicle that matched the description.

After a brief stop, the suspect then fled the scene and the officers gave chase, later stopping him on the exit ramp to Hwy. 495. The suspect was then arrested and taken to jail. On January 6, the car was inventoried and a large array of evidence was seized including: \$2300 in large bills, (2) piggy banks, various coins, (1) gold and diamond ring, (1) wedding band, (1) gold watch.

On July 6, 2004, defendant was indicted for 2 counts of Burglary of a Dwelling, but was alleged to have occurred on June 5, 2004, but was served on the defendant until January 11, 2005. The defendant then signed an Affidavit of Indigency and Waiver of Arraignment Entry of Plea On Non-Capital Cases and Trial Setting form on the 14th day of January, without the benefit of an attorney. The Court then appointed Oby T. Rogers on the 19th of January.

On June 20, 2005, the court signed an "Agreed Order Amending The Indictment" which was agreed to by Richard W. Webb, ADA, and Atty. Oby Rogers. On July 12, 2005, the appointed Atty Oby Rogers filed an unrelated "Motion to Withdraw" due to lack of contact with the defendant, but the Court never entered an order on the same. Three days later on July 15, 2005, a "Bench Warrant" was issued for the defendant for failure to appear under bond. The defendant had never been placed on bond, but was on probation and reporting to Hinds County Probation Office every month.

Defendant was served with the "Bench Warrant" on January 20, 2006 and was held in Covington Co. Jail. On February 24, 2006, Logan was taken to court with retained Attorney Dan McIntosh that was hired on February 12, 2006 in an attempt to get the Bench Warrant lifted, but never made it to the Judge. He was then told that Warren County had a "hold" on him and would be held for them. Logan was then transported to Warren County on March 15, 2006 to await possible revocation of probation. The Court in Warren County was held in abeyance because Logan was in prison on the day that was on the original indictment and could not have committed the crimes.

On July 5, 2006, appellant was transported back to Covington Co. from Warren Co. to await trial.

On July 24, 2006, appellant was tried and convicted of two counts of burglary and subsequently sentenced to 25 years as a habitual offender. Then on August 18, 2006, a hearing was held on defendant's JNOV motion and same was denied. Defendant is now appealing this decision.

Summary of The Argument

The defendant was denied due process throughout the entire course of the proceedings, defendant's car was not searched according to policy and procedure. Also there was no identification of defendant as the perpetrator of the crimes. The state relied heavily on questionable evidence gained through inadequate procedure. Defendant was ambushed by amended indictment without notice of change and without proper presentation of the court. The procedural defects in this case are prejudicial and constitute gross negligence.

ISSUE NO. 1: Whether the trial court erred in allowing the indictment to be amended twice to correct the date of crimes.?

The appellant contends that these amendments were very material and prejudicial particularly due to the manner in which they were allowed. In trying to keep separate the issue at hand from merging into another, I apologize, but they are so intertwined it would be impossible to explain one with the other.

On January 11, 2005, defendant was served with an indictment [T. 5-8] which reads just as shown here. Let this court be advised that the defendant was incarcerated on June 5, 2004 at C.M.C. F. On January 14, 2005, defendant signed a "Waiver of Arraignment" form without an attorney being appointed and after signing an "Affidavit of Indigency" on the same day. Now the "Affidavit of Indigency" was filed immediately, but the "Waiver of Arraignment" form was not filed until January 19, 2005, which coincidentally was the same day Atty. Oby Rogers was appointed, [T. 12-13]. His signature appears there as if he were there when defendant signed. The record reflects otherwise. On June 20, 2005, Ass. District Atty. Richard W. Webb and Oby Rogers agreed to amend the indictment with the specific purpose to correct the date from June 5, 2004 to January 5, 2005, [T. 15]. Defendant fully acknowledges that amendments of form are permitted by the court as stated in *Rhymes v State* 638 So.2d 1270:

"Courts may amend an indictment to correct a defect in form, but defects of substance must be corrected by the grand jury."

Also Rule 7.09 U.R.C.C.P. says:

"Amendments shall be allowed only if the defendant is afforded a fair opportunity to present a defense and is not unfairly surprised."

Then surprisingly, Atty Rogers files an undated "Motion to Withdraw" on July 12, 2005, which is not accompanied by the required certificate of service. The substance of this motion was "after numerous attempts to reach the defendant the attorney has had no contact with the defendant." [T.16] He had an address and phone number which has not been changed in years. This amendment was allowed without the required guarantees of the 14th Amendment of Due Process of law of notice of the charges. The defendant neither knew or was given a fair opportunity to agree or disagree to a critical decision such as this and coupled with the fact of no contact with the court-appointed lawyer. The defendant was on probation under the supervision of Off. Ted Rogers in Hinds County and reporting monthly and never missed an appointment and also gainfully employed. [T.219] As stated by defendant in JNOV hearing [T. 221-222], the defendant called Mr. Rogers and he never told me that any decisions had been made or anything about the case although he lied and said the M.D.D.C. told him I was locked up. The defendant is attempting to show that opportunity was there to be advised of any material decisions made without defendant's consent.

In addressing the first criteria set forth in Rhymes 638, the amendment clearly altered a defense to the indictment as it originally stood as to prejudice the defendant's case. It is clear that defendant would have relied on an alibi for the defense knowing he was incarcerated that day and to change it took away that claim of defense. At the time of plea of not guilty, there was only the prosecutor Richard Wiley Webb, Dep. Circuit Clerk Melissa Duckworth and the defendant William Logan Jr., no judge, no appointed attorney to advise and prevent the defendant from making an uninformed decision or protect his rights. Rule 8.01 Arraignment says

"In all cases of waiver of the reading of the indictment may be permitted, if the defendant is represented by an attorney."

In the record of this present case, it is obvious that there was no attorney appointed to represent the defendant at this time, which is a "critical stage" of the proceedings as stated in Powell v. Alabama 287 U.S. 45 (1932)

"period from arraignment ~~to~~ to trial is "perhaps the most critical period of the proceedings" during which defendant requires the guiding hand of counsel."

this was done in violation of the rights of the defendant declared by the 6th and 14th Amendment to the U.S. Constitution and the Mississippi Constitution Art. 3, Sec. 26 and also Rule 3.8(c) of Rules of Professional Conduct which states that:

"A prosecutor in a criminal case shall not seek to obtain from an unrepresented, accused a waiver of important pretrial rights."

In this present case, the original indictment had a wrong date, then without due process of law and lack of notice to the defendant, the prosecutor and court appointed lawyer presented an "Agreed Order" to the court and was purportedly signed by the court without neither party knowing the date was still wrong. The defendant did not have any knowledge to this amendment.

On February 12, 2006, while in Covington Co. Jail defendant then consulted Atty Dan McIntosh about representation and paid a partial retainer, defendant then showed up at court to get the "Bench Warrant" [T. 17-18] ~~and~~ lifted and while the retained attorney and defendant waited to see the judge a warrant for revocation of probation from Warren County was given to the defendant by Asst. D.A. Richard W. Webb and he told defendant the he would be going to Warren County and there would be no hearing, this happened February 24, 2006. On July 13, 2006, another "Agreed Order" [T. 26] was filed to change the date of occurrence from June 5, 2004 to January 5, 2004. Which completely left out the January 5, 2005 date that was agreed to in the first amendment, also this was done without notice to the defendant and while he was in jail in Covington County. Attorney Oby Rogers never even attempted to confer with his "client" on the matter. Then coincidentally filed another "Motion to Withdraw" the same day [T. 27-28] in which he again stated that there was no contact with the

defendant, but then says the defendant states that Hon. Dan McIntosh is his hired attorney [T. 27]. If he had no contact with the defendant then how could the defendant tell him about the retained attorney. This is to show this court of his prior knowledge of retained attorney. At trial during the jury instructions is when the defendant's attorney objected to S-2 and S-3 because they had a date different from original indictment and also the first "Agreed Order" [T. 129-134]. It is evident that the defense was clearly surprised by this amendment. The record reflects that even the court was surprised by this event as evidenced by the court's response [T. 129-130, 132]. MS Code 99-17-

15 reads

"The order of the court for amendment of the indictment, record or proceedings provided in Section 99-17-13 shall be entered on the minutes, and shall specify precisely the amendment, and shall be a part of the record of the said case, and shall have the same effect as if the indictment or other proceedings were actually changed to conform to the amendment; and wherever necessary and proper for the guidance of the jury, or otherwise, the clerk shall attach to the indictment a copy of the order for amendment."

In the case at bar, none of these procedures were followed and directly violates the very essence of its purpose which is to give notice to all parties involved to enable the defense to sufficiently prepare for trial and make knowingly decisions to the evidence. The court in this case erred in allowing a second amendment to the indictment to show a correct date. Rule 7.06(5) reads in part:

"Failure to show a correct date shall not render an indictment insufficient."

Also, Miss. Code Ann. 99-17-15 states:

"The order of the court for amendment of the indictment, record or proceedings provided in Section 99-17-13, shall be entered on the minutes, and specify precisely the amendment, and shall be part of the record of said case, and shall have the same effect as if the indictment or other proceedings were actually changed to conform to the amendment; and wherever necessary or proper for the guidance of the jury, or otherwise, the clerk shall attach a copy of the order for amendment to the indictment.

It is obvious this procedure was not followed, (1) On [T.132] the state said, "They may have it ready to go to the minutes or something." Then the trial court said that it will put a copy in the file and mark it himself [T.132], but if you look at [T.26] this order is stamped filed, but not marked filed by the court. (2) These amendments were not attached to the indictment as required by the above statute [T.132]. Neither were they presented to the jury for guidance. These amendments were not properly before the court without oral and written motions, thereby violating due process. Also prejudice must be presumed because amendments were done without notice to the accused and were not determined by the court to see if they prejudiced or change a defense. It was even said by Asst. D.A. Webb at [T.205,206] that "we" considered it to be a typographical error. That determination is required to be made by the court, not the state. The test for whether an amendment would prejudice the defense is whether the defense as it originally stood would be equally available after the amendment is made.

Issue No. II : Whether the trial court erred in allowing evidence seized during an invalid inventory search?

The appellant alleges that the evidence seized during the inventory search was in violation of his 4th Amendment Constitutional Rights. Appellant intends to show that the search was unreasonable and not done in accordance to established policy and procedure.

First we must look at the reason for an inventory search. It is the production of an inventory and has a non-investigatory nature. Our high Court has developed three distinct needs: The protection of police against claims or disputes over lost or stolen property, U.S. v. Keeler 470 F.2d 176, 178 (1972), protection of owner's property while it remains in police custody U.S. v. Mitchell 458 F.2d 960, 961 (1972), protection of police from potential danger, California v. Cooper 386 U.S. 58 (1967). It is clear from this present case that Investigator Newman's intent and purpose was not to satisfy neither one of the required purposes. At trial during cross examination, Newman stated in response to why he didn't get a search warrant "Because I used the Impounded Vehicle Inventory Form," [T. 120]. Also during Jury Instructions it was mentioned by D.A. Bowen that when you do an inventory search, you don't need a search warrant" [T. 127]. Further strengthening the appellant's contention of the Investigator's intent and motive.

In this case the appellant was taken into custody on January 5, 2004, and according to the Inventory Vehicle Form [Ex. D-4] the search was done on January 6, 2004. The time of the inventory was a hotly disputed topic, because it shows that there was no safe keeping of property motive involved. Look at the inventoried items on [Ex. D-4] and compare to [Ex. 5-6, 5-10] and it becomes clear certain items were not inventoried to wit: ID holder, wallet with I.D., debit card, S.S. card, cap, cigarettes among other items. This exposes the true nature of the search. There were no pictures of the inventoried \$2300, gold watch, ring, wedding band, various coins, except the ones generally kept in the car, no silver dollar in a necklace mount, no blue jewelry box/w coins.

In Marshall v. U.S., 986 F.2d 1171 the court stated:

"Police may not conduct a search solely for investigation purposes."

Again this shows the motive for the search of the vehicle.

Inv. Newman stated at [T.120] that the search was conducted instead of getting a warrant, "I used the inventory sheet."

In Florida v. Wells, 495 U.S. 1.

"If our cases establish anything it is that an individual police officer cannot be given complete discretion in conducting an inventory search. The exercise of discretion by an individual officer, especially when it can't be measured against objective, standard criteria, creates the potential for abuse of Fourth Amendment rights our earlier cases

were designed against."

In the case at bar, numerous times was it said by Newman that he was "alone" during his search, [T. 115, 120-121]. (1160 in Wells 495, the court said:

"Under the Federal Constitution's 4th Amendment, an inventory search must not be a ruse for a general rummaging by the police in order to discover incriminating evidence; the policy or practice governing the search should be to produce an inventory, and an individual police must not be allowed so much latitude that searches are turned into a purposeful and general means of discovering evidence of crime."

The investigator went so far as to prepare an underlying facts and circumstances report which is generally prepared to secure a search warrant, but then decided to just do an inventory. Also the evidence seized from inventory report [Ex. D-4] and what was recovered on [Ex. D-1] differs, some things are not mentioned. How can this court be sure this "phantom evidence" even existed without it physically being produced at trial or even pictures of it? Taking a complete look at [Ex. D-4], the so-called officer who done the inventory never even signed the form to verify he even conducted the search and Dep. Wayne Harvey signature is in the witness box, but again Newman stated repeatedly that the other deputy (Harvey) was not there. Also Newman was not present when Harvey "processed for prints" [Ex. D-4] [T. 114] but Inv. Newman said during cross, that that equipment (fingerprinting) was not issued or available at that time, [T. 114]. M.R.E. 901(a) (comment) says:

"The authentication and identification aspects of

evidence are central to the concept of relevancy. Unless it be satisfactorily shown that an item of evidence is "genuine," the item is irrelevant and should be excluded."

The officer's selective attitude of what to photograph, what to give back to victims, even though certain items he testified that he gave to victims, and some he put in the evidence vault, even though victims testified that they never received those items and he didn't produce them at trial. [T. 107-111], [T. 73]. We are dealing with a case here, where you have one officer who purportedly conducted a invalid inventory search, "alone", photographed some evidence, but not all, didn't sign the form, didn't verify or couldn't verify what he ~~releas~~ released to the victims, processed for fingerprints without equipment, and further perjured himself when he said that dispatch were or would have been relaying updated information to them over radio. [T. 88]. See Ex. 1 which is a dispatch report provided in discovery. Wayne Harvey (Cov. 17) & Investigator Newman (I-1). There never was anything over the radio that disclosed what was missing, except a cash box, which appellant never had or was never recovered.

The appellant has shown that the statements were knowingly or intentionally false, or made in reckless disregard of the truth, and upon these premises search must be voided and the fruits excluded. Also again the inventory cannot be used as a pretext concealing a police investigatory motive. In South Dakota v. Opperman, 428 U.S. 364, the searching officer's intent was revealed at the trial in response to why did he inventory the car?

"Mainly for safekeeping, because we have had a

a lot of trouble in the past of people getting into the compound lot and breaking into cars and stealing stuff out of them."

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