WILLIAM JAMES LOGAN, JR.

**APPELLANT** 

SEP 1 0 2007

VS.

OFFICE OF THE CLERK SUPREME COURT COURT OF APPEALS

NO. 2006-KP-1790-COA

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

**APPELLEE** 

# BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

APPELLEE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT

**ЛМ HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL** 

BY: DESHUN T. MARTIN

SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

MISSISSIPPI BAR NO.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680

#

STATEMENT OF THE CASE
STATEMENT OF FACTS
SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT
THE ARGUMENT
PROPOSITIONS I. and IV are combined.  THE INDICTMENT WAS PROPERLY AMENDED
THE TRIAL COURT WAS PROPER IN ALLOWING EVIDENCE SEIZED DURING THE INVENTORY SEARCH
PROPOSITIONS III., VII, AND VIII are combined.  THE APPELLANT HAD EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF  COUNSEL1
PROPOSITION VI.  IDENTIFICATION OF THE APPELLANT WAS WELL  PROFFERED
CONCLUSION
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

# TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

# FEDERAL CASES

## IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

WILLIAM JAMES LOGAN, JR.

APPELLANT

VS.

NO. 2006-KP-1790-COA

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

**APPELLEE** 

## BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

# STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal against a judgment of the Circuit Court of Covington County, Mississippi, in which the Appellant, William James Logan, Jr., was convicted and sentenced for the felony crime of BURGLARY (two counts), Miss. Code Ann. § 97-17-23 (1972), and as a HABITUAL OFFENDER, Miss. Code Ann. § 99-19-81 (1972).

## STATEMENT OF FACTS

On January 5, 2004, William James Logan, Jr., (Logan) broke into two homes in Covington County, Mississippi. These homes were located on Highway 35 South over there around Mount Olive. On January 5, 2004, about 11:15 a.m., Mrs. Ruby Benson and her husband were returning home from the doctor. They pulled into their driveway and noticed a vehicle on their premises. When they got out of the vehicle and started to the door of their home, Logan came out of the door with property belonging to them, got in his vehicle and left. He had broken into their home and stolen some jewelry and some money. They called 911 and reported the burglary. A few minutes later, around 11:30 a.m., Ms. Sue Wise returned to her home which was located a few miles north

of the Benson's home on Highway 35. When she pulled into her driveway, she noticed that the porch light was on. That was rather unusual, so she proceeded with caution. She noticed that her home, too, had been broken into. There were two piggy banks stolen and some jewelry was taken, but these were two distinctive piggy banks. One was a school bus piggy bank and the other one was a green piggy bank. Sue Wise called 911 and reported that burglary. The Appellant broke into her home first, came on down the road, and broke into Mrs. Benson's home. Logan ran out of the house, got in his vehicle and left. Responding to the first 911 burglary call, which was the Benson call, Covington County Deputies Wayne Harvey and Chris Newman left Collins and headed down Highway 84 West to investigate that burglary. They were on the lookout for a tan-colored Honda automobile with a Warren County tag that had been involved in that burglary. While traveling down Highway 84 West, and before they got to Highway 35, they noticed a vehicle matching that description as it passed them. It was headed east on 84 and they were headed west on 84. They turned around and followed this Honda automobile. Logan noticed that there were deputies behind him. The Appellant got out of his vehicle, and it was explained to him that his vehicle matched the description of the vehicle involved in the burglary. Logan jumped back into his vehicle and drove away while the deputies began to chase him. He drove down Highway 84 East and turned right onto Lake Mike Conner Road. He was pulled over again, and that's where he was apprehended. Deputy Chris Newman approached the defendant's vehicle and saw money and two piggy banks in the car. They also recovered somewhere around \$2300 in cash that had been taken from the Benson home. (Tr. 3 - 7).

#### SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

#### I. and IV are combined.

## THE INDICTMENT WAS PROPERLY AMENDED.

Reid v. State, 910 So.2d 615, 624 (Miss. App. 2005) holds that an indictment which is substantially in the language of the statute is sufficient; so long as from a fair reading of the indictment, taken as a whole, the nature and cause of the charge against the accused are clear, the indictment is legally sufficient. Fuqua v. State, 938 So.2d 277 (Miss. App. 2006) holds that for an indictment to be sufficient, it must contain the essential elements of the crime charged.

Mississippi Uniform Circuit and County Court Rule 7.09 Amendment of Indictment:

All indictments may be amended as to form but not as to the substance of the offense charged. Indictments may also be amended to charge the defendant as an habitual offender or to elevate the level of the offense where the offense is one which is subject to enhanced punishment for subsequent offenses and the amendment is to assert prior offenses justifying such enhancement (e.g., driving under the influence, Miss. Code. Ann. Section 63-11-30). Amendment shall be allowed only if the defendant is afforded a fair opportunity to present a defense and is not unfairly surprised.

#### II. and V. are combined.

# THE TRIAL COURT WAS PROPER IN ALLOWING EVIDENCE SEIZED DURING THE INVENTORY SEARCH.

Rankin v. State, 636 So.2d 652 (Miss. 1994) held that personal effects in arrestee's possession at place of detention, which were subject to search at time and place of arrest, may later be searched and seized without warrant at place of detention. <u>U.S.C.A. Const. Amend. 4.</u>

# III., VII, and VIII are combined.

## THE APPELLANT HAD EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL.

Garibaldi v. State, 840 So.2d 793, 796 (Miss. App. 2003) held that each case involving claim of ineffective assistance of counsel should be decided based on the totality of the circumstances, that is, by looking to the evidence in the entire record. The standard of performance used is whether counsel provided reasonably effective assistance and that for purposes of claim of ineffective assistance of counsel, there is a strong presumption that counsel's conduct is within the wide range of reasonable professional conduct. The record shows Appellant's counsel was well within the Garibaldi competency requirements.

# VI.

## IDENTIFICATION OF THE APPELLANT WAS WELL PROFFERED.

# THE ARGUMENT

## PROPOSITIONS I. and IV are combined.

#### THE INDICTMENT WAS PROPERLY AMENDED.

Logan alleges that the amendments to the indictment were prejudicial. (Appellant Brief 1).

The State contends and the entire record proves that the amendments to the indictment were necessary and proper.

Reid v. State, 910 So.2d 615, 624 (Miss. App. 2005) holds that an indictment which is substantially in the language of the statute is sufficient; so long as from a fair reading of the indictment, taken as a whole, the nature and cause of the charge against the accused are clear, the indictment is legally sufficient. Fuqua v. State, 938 So.2d 277 (Miss. App. 2006) holds that for an indictment to be sufficient, it must contain the essential elements of the crime charged.

Mississippi Uniform Circuit and County Court Rule 7.09 Amendment of Indictment:

All indictments may be amended as to form but not as to the substance of the offense charged. Indictments may also be amended to charge the defendant as an habitual offender or to elevate the level of the offense where the offense is one which is subject to enhanced punishment for subsequent offenses and the amendment is to assert prior offenses justifying such enhancement (e.g., driving under the influence, Miss. Code. Ann. Section 63-11-30). Amendment shall be allowed only if the defendant is afforded a fair opportunity to present a defense and is not unfairly surprised.

The indictment was properly amended.

The indictment tracked the pertinent statutes. The indictment was proper.

This issue brought by the Appellant is therefore lacking in merit.

## PROPOSITIONS II. and V are combined.

# THE TRIAL COURT WAS PROPER IN ALLOWING EVIDENCE SEIZED DURING THE INVENTORY SEARCH.

Appellant alleges that the search of the vehicle was unreasonable. (Appellant Brief 7). This is not the case.

Rankin v. State, 636 So.2d 652 (Miss. 1994) held that personal effects in arrestee's possession at place of detention, which were subject to search at time and place of arrest, may later be searched and seized without warrant at place of detention. <u>U.S.C.A. Const. Amend. 4.</u>

The pertinent facts are that on January 5, 2004, about 11:15 a.m., Mrs. Ruby Benson and her husband were returning home from the doctor. They pulled into their driveway and noticed a vehicle on their premises. When they got out of the vehicle and started to the door of their home, Logan came out of the door with property belonging to them, got in his vehicle and left. He had broken into their home and stolen some jewelry and some money. They called 911 and reported the burglary. A few minutes later, around 11:30 a.m., Ms. Sue Wise returned to her home which was located a few miles north of the Benson's home on Highway 35. When she pulled into her driveway, she noticed that the porch light was on. That was rather unusual, so she proceeded with caution. She noticed

that her home, too, had been broken into. There were two piggy banks stolen and some jewelry was taken, but these were two distinctive piggy banks. One was a school bus piggy bank and the other one was a green piggy bank. Sue Wise called 911 and reported that burglary. The Appellant broke into her home first, came on down the road, and broke into Mrs. Benson's home. Logan ran out of the house, got in his vehicle and left. Responding to the first 911 burglary call, which was the Benson call, Covington County Deputies Wayne Harvey and Chris Newman left Collins and headed down Highway 84 West to investigate that burglary. They were on the lookout for a tan-colored Honda automobile with a Warren County tag that had been involved in that burglary. While traveling down Highway 84 West, and before they got to Highway 35, they noticed a vehicle matching that description as it passed them. It was headed east on 84 and they were headed west on 84. They turned around and followed this Honda automobile. Logan noticed that there were deputies behind him. The Appellant got out of his vehicle, and it was explained to him that his vehicle matched the description of the vehicle involved in the burglary. Logan jumped back into his vehicle and drove away while the deputies began to chase him. He drove down Highway 84 East and turned right onto Lake Mike Conner Road. He was pulled over again, and that's where he was apprehended. Deputy Chris Newman approached the defendant's vehicle and saw money and two piggy banks in the car. They also recovered somewhere around \$2300 in cash that had been taken from the Benson home. (Tr. 3 - 7).

<u>U.S.C.A. Const. Amend. 4</u> holds that the right of the people to be secure in their persons, houses, papers, and effects, against unreasonable searches and seizures, shall not be violated, and no Warrants shall issue, but upon probable cause, supported by Oath or affirmation, and particularly describing the place to be searched, and the persons or things to be seized, was not violated.

Paramountly, Deputy Chris Newman and Deputy Wayne Harvey had probably cause to stop

# and search the vehicle of the Appellant.

# Deputy Chris Newman testified:

- 14 On that day, I call your attention to
- about 11:30 o'clock in the morning, a.m., and
- 16 ask you what were you doing at about that
- 17 time?
- 18 A. Deputy Wayne Harvey and I were on our
- 19 way to investigate a burglary that had
- 20 occurred at a home on Highway 35.
- Q. And where were you when you learned of the burglary?
- A. We were at the Covington County
- 24 Sheriff's Department here in Collins.
- Q. In what direction did you go to investigate that burglary?
- 27 A. We travelled on Highway 84 West
- 28 towards Highway 35 from the sheriff's
- 29 department.

1 2

- Q. Before you reached Highway 35, what, if anything, unusual did you see?
- A. I saw a tan-colored Honda automobile with tinted windows pass us.
- Q. And why was it unusual that you saw this particular vehicle?
- A. We were on the lookout for that type and color automobile with a Warren County tag that had been involved in the burglary.
- Q. At this time, did you know that the Wise home had also been burglarized?
- 12 A. No, sir. That call came a little
- 13 later.
- Q. And what did you and Deputy Harvey do after you saw this vehicle pass you?
- A. We turned around and got behind it as it traveled down Highway 84 East.
- Q. And did you and Deputy Harvey stop the vehicle?
- A. Yes, sir.
- Q. Whereabouts did you stop it?
- A. About Burnham's store on Highway 84
- 23 East.
- Q. And after the vehicle was stopped, did
- you notice the tag on the vehicle?

- 26 A. Yes, sir, I did.
- 27 O. And what county was the tag from?
- A. It was a Warren County, Mississippi. 28
- 29 Q. And what happened after you and Deputy 1 Harvey stopped the vehicle?
- 2 A. Deputy Harvey asked the defendant to
- 3 get out of the vehicle. 4 Q. Did the defendant get out of the 5 vehicle?
  - A. Yes, sir.

6

11

12

13

16

17

18

19

20 21

23

25

3

- 7 Q. And what, if anything, did the 8 defendant say at that time?
- 9 A. The defendant wanted to know the 10 reason he had been stopped.
  - Q. And what was the defendant told as to the reason he was stopped?
- A. He had been stopped because a vehicle 14 matching the description of his vehicle had 15 been involved in the burglary.
  - Q. And after the defendant was advised the reason as to why he was stopped, what if anything, did the defendant say?
  - A. He stated that he was running low on gas and needed to turn his motor off in his vehicle.
- 22 Q. And what did the defendant do then?
  - A. He jumped in his car and took off.
- 24 Q. And what did you and Deputy Harvey do?
  - A. We got in behind him and chased him.
- 26 O. And where did you chase the defendant?
- 27 A. He went east on Highway 84. He took a right on to Lake Mike Conner Road. 28
- 29 Q. And as you chased him down Lake Mike 1 Conner Road, did you ever lose sight of him?
- 2 A. Yes, sir.
  - Q. And how did you manage to find him?
- 4 A. As we were coming into the
- 5 Williamsburg Community there on Lake Mike
- 6 Conner Road and as we were passing the Mooney
- 7 Furniture building, I looked back and saw the
- 8 defendant's vehicle parked behind one of the
- 9 buildings.
- 10 Q. And what did you and Deputy Harvey do
- 11 then?
- 12 A. We turned our patrol car around.

Q. And as you were turning your patrol car around, what did the defendant do?

17

19 20

21 22

23

24

25

26 27

28 29

1

2

4

5

6

7 8

9

10

11

18

19 20

21

- 15 A. The defendant pulled out and took off 16 towards Highway 84.
  - Q. And what did you and Deputy Harvey do?
- 18 A. We got in behind him and chased him.
  - Q. And where did the defendant go as you and Deputy Harvey chased him?
  - A. The defendant turned right and headed down Highway 84 East towards Collins.
    - Q. And did he stay on Highway 84?
  - A. No, sir. Just before Collins he took the ramp onto U.S. 49 South.
    - Q. And where did he go?
  - A. Once he took the ramp, he just pulled over and he was arrested.
    - Q. Do you remember who arrested him?
  - A. No, sir. By that time, there were several other officers assisting us, and I don't remember which one made the actual arrest.
  - Q. And at the time the defendant was being apprehended, did you have an opportunity to see inside the defendant's vehicle?
  - A. Yes, sir. I didn't know if there was anyone else in it so I approached the vehicle.
  - Q. And when you got to the vehicle, what, if anything, did you see inside the vehicle?

MR. McINTOSH: To which we are going to object, Your Honor, until a proper predicate is laid.

15 THE COURT: Overruled. He can answer 16 it.

## 17 BY MR. BOWEN:

- Q. When you got to the vehicle, what, if anything, did you see inside that vehicle?
- A. I saw some gold colored coins as well as some change, and I saw two piggy banks.
- Q. Did you recover the money and the piggy banks?
- A. Yes, sir.
- Q. At this time, were you aware that Sue Wise's home had also been burglarized?
- A. Yes, sir. That call came to us over the radio during the pursuit.

29 Q. Okay. Other than the change and the gold colored coins, did you recover any other 1 2 money? 3 A. Yes, sir, about \$2300. 4 Q. And what did you do with the \$2300? 5 A. I returned that to the owner. 6 O. And who was the owner? 7 MR. McINTOSH: To which we object, 8 Your Honor, as being a supposition. THE COURT: Well, you need to 9 establish the basis of his knowledge, Mr. 10 Bowen, as to how he knew who the owner 11 12 was. 13 BY MR. BOWEN: 14 Q. How did you establish the ownership of 15 that \$2300? 16 A. The information would have been 17 relayed to us by dispatch of the items that were taken from each home. Because again, 18 19 they were relaying updated information to us 20 as we were involved in this pursuit. MR. McINTOSH: If Your Honor please, 21 22 I'm still going to object. There was no dispatch to them at any time saying \$2300 23 had been taken. (Tr. 84 - 88). 24

The record and all of the evidence point to the Appellant as being the perpetrator.

This issue brought by the Appellant is therefore lacking in merit.

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